
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
 


 (*In order discussed) 
 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
September 7, 2017 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Rich Holmer 
 Gaylord Schaap 
 Pip Marquez de la Plata 
 Tim Lipinski 
  
Board Members Absent: None. 
 
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Christine M. Hanley, Acting Secretary to the Board 
  
Others in Attendance:     Robin Donoghue, Esq. (Meyers Nave) 
      Leslie Bahr 
       
 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Robb-Wilder at 6:30 p.m.   
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT 
(6:31 p.m.) 


 
None. 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:32 p.m.) 
 
Director Robb-Wilder reviewed the items on the Consent Calendar.  Director Schaap moved to 
approve the Consent Calendar. Director Lipinski seconded.  Motion carried 5-0, except that Director 
Robb-Wilder abstained from voting on the Minutes of the July 6, 2017 Board Meeting and Director 
Lipinski abstained from voting on the Minutes of the August 3, 2017 Board meeting because they 
were absent from those meetings.  The following items were approved:  
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the July 6 and August 3, 2017 Board Meetings  
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payment. 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence: (None.) 


 1







 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:34 p.m.) 
None. 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:35 p.m.)* 
     *in the order discussed 
 
V-A. (6:35 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re   Appeal of Capacity Charge Requirement at 15967 


Laurel Place Guerneville.  The GM gave an overview of this item.  Property Owner Leslie 
Bahr made a presentation to the Board.  Board questions and significant discussion 
ensued.  No action was taken.  Director Holmer moved to revisit item at the next Board 
meeting.  Director Robb-Wilder seconded.  Motion carried 5-0. 


 
V-B. (7:25 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re  Proposal of the Monte Rio Recreation and Park 


District (MRRPD) to acquire District lands in Monte Rio.  The GM gave an overview of 
this item.  Board discussion ensued.  No action was taken. 


 
 
V-C. (7:30 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re  Resolution 17-15, Approving the Adoption of the 


Public Agencies Post-Employment Benefits Trust Administered by Public Agency 
Retirement Services.  The GM gave an overview of this item.  Director Holmer moved to 
adopt Resolution 17-15, Approving the Adoption of the Public Agencies Post-Employment 
Benefits Trust Administered by Public Agency Retirement Services (PARS).  Director 
Robb-Wilder seconded.  Motion carried 5-0. 


 
V-B. (7:38 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Guernewood Park Resort Water Service Request to 


the District.  The GM gave an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  No action 
was taken. 


 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (7:45 p.m.) 
 
The GM provided a report on the following items: 
 
1. Water production and sales 
2. Leaks 
3. Russian River flow 
4. River Lane property sale 
5. CIP 2017 
6. FEMA Applications 
7. Toilet Rebate / Direct Install Program 
8. In-House Construction Projects 
9. Gantt Chart 
 
Brief discussion ensued. 
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 
(8:15 p.m.) 


 
(None.) 
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:17 p.m.) 
 


 2







 3


At 8:17 p.m., Director Marquez de la Plata announced the items for discussion in Closed Session.  
At 8:20 p.m. the Board went into Closed Session.  At 9:10 p.m., the meeting reconvened and the 
following action was taken on the Closed Session item listed below: 
 
 A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to 


subdivision (d)(2) of Section 54956.9 based on correspondence from Leslie Bahr 
(one potential case) 


  Direction was given to staff. 
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (9:00 p.m.) 
 
1. PARS 
2. July Minutes 
3. Monte Rio Rec and Park land purchase proposal 
4. CIP 2017 update 
5. District water rights  
6. Guernewood Park Resort 
7. Capacity Charge requirement - Leslie Bahr 
 
 


ADJOURN 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:18 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Christine M. Hanley 
Acting Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
 
 
APPROVED:  
 


Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  


Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  


Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  


Richard Holmer        


Pip Marquez de la Plata       





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT

		(6:31 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:32 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:34 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:35 p.m.)*

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (7:45 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS

		(8:15 p.m.)

		VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:17 p.m.)



		ADJOURN






              
 
 
 


www.sweetwatersprings.com 


 


BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA 


October 5, 2017, Regular Meeting  
District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 


Guerneville, California 
6:30 p.m. 


 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 


I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 
(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the September 7, 2017 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 







 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 
attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 


 
  1. Letter dated September 12, 2017 from the State Water Resources 


Control Board re Water Partnerships and/or Regional Water System Potential. 
 
  2. Memo dated September 20, 2017 to Independent Special Districts from 


Sonoma LAFCO re Various Items of Interest 
 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
A. Discussion/Action re Appeal of Capacity Charge Requirement at 15967 Laurel 


Place Guerneville.  (Owner: Leslie Bahr) (Est. time 20 min.) 
 
B. Discussion/Action re: 
 


 Resolution 17-16, Authorizing and Providing for a Financing for the 
Purpose of Providing a Portion of the Cost of Acquiring, Constructing, 
Enlarging, Improving, and/or Extending its Water Facility to Serve an 
Area Lawfully Within Its Jurisdiction to Serve (Est. time 10 min.) 


 
and 
 
 Resolution 17-17, Declaring Its (SSWD's) Official Intent to Reimburse 


Certain Expenditures from the Proceeds of Debt 
 
 (Est. time 15 min.) 
  
C. Discussion/Action re District funds  invested in PARS Rate Stabilization Program 


(Est. time 10 min.) 
 
D. Discussion/Action re Guernewood Park Resort Project (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
E. Discussion/Action re Review of Fiscal Year 2016-17 (Est. time 15 min.) 
 
F. Discussion/Action re Revision of District Policies and Procedures (Est. time 10 


min.) 
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION 


 2







 
 A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to 


subdivision (d)(2) of Section 54956.9 based on correspondence from Leslie Bahr 
(one potential case) 


 
 B. Public Employee Performance Evaluation pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957 
  Title: General Manager 
 
IX. ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA 


ADJOURN 


 3







 4


Sweetwater Springs Water District Mission and Goals 
 
The mission of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is to provide its 
customers with quality water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective 
manner and to manage District resources for the benefit of the community and 
environment.  The District provides water distribution and maintenance services to five 
townships adjacent to the Russian River:  


 Guerneville 
 Rio Nido 
 Guernewood Park 
 Villa Grande 
 Monte Rio 
 


GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO ENSURE EFFECTIVE 
UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES 
 
GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE WATER WITH 
FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, MANAGED AND MAINTAINED 
TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY 
 
GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS FOR ALL 
REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 
 
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 
 
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND 
EDUCATION 
 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		IX. ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA



		ADJOURN



















































































SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: October 5, 2017 
  
SUBJECT: APPEAL OF WATER SERVICE TERMINATION AT 15967 LAUREL 
PLACE, GUERNEVILLE, CA  
 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   Confirm District staff's decision to terminate water service 
at 15967 Laurel Place, Guerneville, CA because of non-payment of Capacity Charge 
and Annual Flat Charge for this parcel. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Capacity Charge for FY 17-18 is $6,214 
  
DISCUSSION: 
 
This item appears on the Agenda at the request of the property owner, Leslie Bahr.  
She has provided packet materials of her own which is included in the agenda 
packet.  Staff has a different view which is provided below. 


District staff turned off water service to Ms. Bahr's property at 15967 Laurel Place, 
Guerneville, CA on June 30, 2017.  This has been a long-running situation which was 
discussed at the September meeting: 


Staff made statements at that meeting which were correct as far as we knew from 
the information we had at the time.  Since then Ms. Bahr has responded to staff 
statements and we have done more investigation: 


 Contrary to statements staff made at the September meeting, District staff 
called Ms. Bahr in August or September to pay Mr. Drexhage's account "in 
care of" Ms. Bahr, at the request of Mr. Drexhage who gave District staff her 
contact information.  It is not clear from the record who called whom to have 
Ms. Bahr take over the account (instead of the account being in Mr. 
Drexhage's name "in care of" Ms. Bahr) at the end of September. 


 The record clearly shows that no flat charges have ever been paid on any of 
the parcels currently owned by Ms. Bahr.  Ms. Bahr apparently acknowledges 
that.   


 District Policies require that a Capacity Charge is required for establishing a 
service and none has been paid nor have Flat Charges ever been paid for 
whichever parcel Ms. Bahr desires a water service.   







Leslie Bahr Appeal  2  
October 5, 2017 


We (District staff and Ms. Bahr) have not come to agreement on this matter.  Ms. 
Bahr intends to come to the meeting to state her position.   







August 29, 2017 
 
 
Dear Members of the Board of Directors, 
 
The following is a discussion of the circumstances surrounding an existing 
water connection associated with a parcel of land herein described and 
referred to as 15967 Laurel Place, Guerneville, CA 
 
SUMMARY and RESOLUTION 
 
SSWD’s “Policy Regarding Capacity Charge Required for Meter” provides in 
Section 3020.144(a) that, 
  “The entire capacity charge is to be paid within 30 days after the District  
  approves an applicant’s improvement plan for water service unless the 
  District defers, waives or modifies this requirement pursuant to a written 
  agreement and the applicant, approved by the Board of Directors.”   
 
 At no time did I submit an “improvement plan for water service,” and at no 
time did SSWD review or approve an “improvement plan for water service” for my 
property.  Therefore, there was no reason why a capacity charge was or is due.  
The July 25, 2016 email demand by SSWD that I pay a capacity charge, and all 
subsequent requests and demands that I pay a capacity charge, were premature, 
inconsistent with, and unlawful under SSWD’s own regulation.  Further, the 
action taken by SSWD on or about June 30, 2017 in terminating its water service 
to my property at 15967 Laurel Place, Guerneville, CA, based upon my lawful 
refusal to pay the capacity charge (which, by the SSWD’s own regulation, was 
not due) was arbitrary, capricious, discriminatory, inconsistent with SSWD’s own 
rules, and unlawful. SSWD must comply with its own regulations. Therefore, 
SSWD should: (a) restore my water service, which it unlawfully terminated on the 
pretext that a capacity charge payment of $5,901,80 was due, and (b) not seek to 
collect any capacity charge from me until such time as it approves such 
“improvement plan for water service” as I elect to submit.  
 As a good faith offer to resolve this matter, when SSWD restores single 
family residential water service to my property, I will pay, even though no capacity 
charge is due and owing, the capacity charge at its rate of $2,930 (once this 
figure has been verified) in 2006, when SSWD established water service to my 
property. 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 







 For the record, I would like to state that I, in conjunction with my brother-in-
law, purchased 15967 Laurel Place from owner Michael Romero, closing the sale 
in February of 2009.The property was listed four separate times in a period 
dating from 2006-late 2008. All listing materials for the property presented it as 
including “electrical and water utilities.” There was nothing to contradict this 
information in any of the closing documents related to the sale. 
 Subsequently, I undertook a GPA (General Plan Amendment) project, as 
directed by PRMD, in an attempt to get my parcels connected with the sewer 
line. A necessary requirement of the GPA proposal included the provision of a 
public benefit. As SSWD’s Shoeneman tank, located in a small jigsaw puzzle 
piece of land amidst my parcels, was greatly in need of replacement due to its 
limit of 10,000 gallons, and because the tank partially disrupts a view from one of 
the parcels, I made an offer to Steve Mack and Kevin Gilman, managers of 
Sweetwater Springs Water District (hereafter referred to as SSWD) to provide a 
new 30,000 tank in a different location, one that would supply water to the entire 
service area. My proposal was warmly received and accepted by Mr. Mack, and 
he wrote a letter of support for the GPA proposal that was submitted to PRMD as 
part of my packet. The agreement included the provision that I would receive 
three metered water connections at no charge due to the great benefit of my 
providing expanded water capacity to the entire service area. Despite the fact 
that PRMD had outlined and directed this GPA to me, when it was completed and 
finally presented, after two years of effort and expense on my part, they refused 
to pass the amendment. 
 In his August 22, 2017 letter in response to my questions, Mr. Mack 
acknowledged that SSWD established “Single Family Residential” water service 
in my name for my property in September of 2011  Although I believe that such 
service was actually established by SSWD earlier, in 2009, after I had acquired 
the property, it is incontestable that SSWD did establish Single Family 
Residential service for my property in my name, and that it did so well before it 
first notified me, in 2016 (as also acknowledged in Mr. Mack’s letter), that the 
existing service was “temporary.” And from that time forward, through June 30, 
2017 (when Mr. Mack had the service disconnected) I faithfully paid all water 
bills, despite the fact that the only time I spent on my land was in a small trailer 
for maintenance purposes, generally amounting to a maximum of 30 days per 
year. 
 Though Mr. Mack has claimed that my service was on a meter, I do not 
understand how this could have been the case, as the monthly flat rate never 
varied, which it would have done had the service been metered. Throughout its 
onset and the entirety of my service connection (a period of nearly ten years), no 
discussion or mention of the fact that SSWD considered the existing water 
connection to be “temporary” rather than “permanent” was ever made. I believed 
the existing connection to be fully associated with my property, and had no 
reason to believe otherwise since I was a paying customer of SSWD.  







 When Mr. Mack initially contacted me on July 15, 2016, and suddenly 
announced that I was required to pay what he referred to as a “capacity charge” 
fee, I was confused. I had no familiarity with the term, as at no prior time had 
SSWD broached the subject, and did not understand how such a fee was 
determined or the reason I was suddenly obligated to pay it. Mr. Mack offered 
very little by way of explanation, providing only the information that “someone 
else had asked about getting water service,” and that the service for which I had 
been making payments for nearly ten years was in fact only “temporary.” 
 Mr. Mack later acknowledged the confusion his sudden demand had 
caused, and proposed I pay the fee in installments. I responded by stating that I 
needed time to investigate the details of the land purchase and my closing 
documents, and wanted to better understand the circumstances under which an 
owner of unoccupied land was required to pay such a charge. No further 
information was put forward by Mr. Mack along those lines, despite his having 
offered to provide it.  
 Nine months later, on April 27, 2017, when Mr. Mack contacted me again, 
he acknowledged he had “dropped the ball” on the matter, but instead of 
providing any information that would clarify the situation, as I had anticipated, he 
merely demanded payment by June 30, 2017, with the threat of disconnecting 
my service should I not pay by that date. To this, I responded by asking highly 
specific questions of Mr. Mack, all of which, as a long-standing customer of the 
district, were reasonable, considering the nearly $6,000 fee he was demanding I 
pay. Again, he refused to offer any information or answers, until I was forced to 
undertake a lawyer’s assistance in obtaining them. 
 The District, under then managers Chuck Howell and Kevin Gilman, 
provided a water connection to original owner Michael Romero on or about 
February 14, 2006 under a “Construction Investigation Application,” that showed 
a termporary service installation for a period of ninety days (a copy of this 
document was not received by me until July 25, 2016). Mr. Romero had 
completed improvement plans for the property, with architectural documents 
detailing a home he intended to build on the site. SSWD policy requirement 
3020.140, Charges for Installation of New Service Connection, states: 
 “Upon approval of an application for a new service connection and payment by 
the applicant of the service installation charge and connection fees set forth herein, the 
District will make all necessary installations. All deposits made for such charges and 
fees shall be credited to the parcel of land to be served, and shall run with said parcel of 
land.” 
 
In good faith, Mr. Romero applied for, paid for, and received a new service 
connection in February of 2006. Despite policy requirement 3020.144, dictating 
that “the entire capacity charge is to be paid within thirty (30) days after the 
District approves an applicant’s improvement plan for water service,” SSWD 
failed to charge him the capacity charge for a period of more than two years 







while it was on the market, despite his having informed them he intended to sell 
the parcel. The existing water service remained in place, Mr. Romero marketed 
his property with it in place, and I purchased the property with an existing water 
connection that “ran with said parcel of land.” 
 Despite Mr. Mack’s insistence that “all other customers have paid the 
capacity charge” as a reason I should do so, SSWD has had no other long term 
customers paying for a ‘temporary” connection, and I do not believe they 
currently have any other customers who have paid this charge until they have 
submitted developmental documents such as architectural drawings and/or 
building permits. To date, I have not reached this stage of development, and 
though I intend to at some point in the future, I cannot verify exactly when that 
date may be. Nevertheless, I wish to state that I am willing to consider paying a 
“capacity charge,” but one that is commensurate with the date when SSWD, 
under the terms of their own ordinances, was obliged to charge Michael Romero 
(2006), rather than the current cost, which is nearly double. 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
 Prior to June 30, 2017, I made every effort to resolve these circumstances 
with SSWD so that they would not shut off my existing water connection until 
such a time that I might have an opportunity to present this matter to the Board of 
Directors. But all the requests I made of Mr. Mack to answer legitimate, 
reasonable questions based on my status as a long standing customer went 
unanswered until I retained an attorney to assist me in presenting these 
questions to him. I proposed that I make a payment towards the “capacity 
charge” until the Board had a chance to review the situation. Additionally, I 
offered to pay the cost of the “capacity charge” at the price it would have been 
when 15967 Laurel Place was originally purchased by Michael Romero. The 
management team—Mr. Steve Mack, Mr. Kevin Gilman, and Julie Kenny—
refused to consider any of my offers and insisted I agree to the amount they 
demanded (which I could not agree to do) or have my water cut off. My water 
service was disconnected on June 30, 2017, despite my protests, and despite 
the fact that preserving the connection until a formal review was held did not 
affect the District in any way. Because my existing water connection is the last 
available connection in the area, I am currently gravely concerned that SSWD 
will not reinstate my service without demanding that I pay for a new water tower 
that would provide water NOT exclusively to 15967 Laurel Place, but to every 
customer in the entire service area. In fact, I question if whether this situation 
isn’t a deliberate attempt to unlawfully remove my service in order to provide it to 
another potential customer.By refusing to re-instate my service, SSWD would 
dramatically devalue my property and deprive me of any future potential to 
receive service. 
 







I plead that the Board consider these circumstances in a fair and just manner. 
Though I do not believe I currently owe any capacity charge at all, I am willing to 
pay this cost at the rate that should have been charged to to Michael Romero 
when his 90 day contract was up in 2006 ($2,930), upon verification of this 
number.To summarize: 
  
SSWD’s demand that I pay a capacity charge was premature, inconsistent with 
its own regulations, and unlawful because I have never presented, and SSWD 
has never approved, an improvement plan for water service for my property.  For 
the reasons stated above, SSWD should: (a) restore the single family residential 
water service to my property that it unlawfully terminated on June 30, 2017 on 
the pretext that a capacity charge payment was due and owing, when in fact it 
was not, and (b) not seek to collect any capacity charge from me until such time 
as it approves such “improvement plan for water service” as I elect to submit.   
 
However, in the spirit of accommodation, and as a good faith effort to resolve this 
matter, if SSWD restores single family residential water service to my property as 
it existed prior to the termination of service on or about June 30, 2017, I will pay, 
even though no capacity charge is due and owing, the capacity charge of $2,930, 
which was the amount of the capacity charge in 2006 when SSWD established 
water service to the property. I feel my willingness to do so, considering the fact 
that the land is currently undeveloped and my water use is less than 30 days a 
year, is more than reasonable. 
 
Thank you for the time and attention you have devoted to this matter. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Leslie C. Bahr 





		Item V-A - Bahr Appeal

		Item V-A.1 - L. Bahr Appeal Letter






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: October 5, 2017 
  
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF : RESOLUTION 17-16, AUTHORIZING AND PROVIDING 
FOR A FINANCING FOR THE PURPOSE OF PROVIDING A PORTION OF THE COST 
OF ACQUIRING, CONSTRUCTING, ENLARGING, IMPROVING, AND/OR 
EXTENDING ITS WATER FACILITY TO SERVE AN AREA LAWFULLY WITHIN ITS 
JURISDICTION TO SERVE  


 
AND 
 
RESOLUTION 17-17, DECLARING ITS (SSWD'S) OFFICIAL INTENT TO REIMBURSE 
CERTAIN EXPENDITURES FROM THE PROCEEDS OF DEBT 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve Resolution 17-16 which authorizes the District to 
move forward with bond financing with USDA, RUS for construction of Phases 2 and 3 of 
the 2017 CIP and Resolution 17-17 which allows the District to use funds from the bond 
to reimburse itself for costs other than construction.   


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  No direct impact but the bond financing will allow the District to 
incur debt of approximately $1.9 million. 
    
DISCUSSION: 
The District has agreed to move forward with a USDA loan obligation to fund completion 
of Phases 2 and 3 of the 2017 CIP.  Phases 2 and 3 of the 2017 CIP are replacement of 
approximately 3,500 ft of existing main and 70 services on Old River Rd at Morningside 
east to the eastern section of Foothill Drive near where Old River Road intersects with 
River Road, and includes Orchard Rd and Foothill Drive.  The USDA loan obligation will 
have a total value of approximately $1.9 million and will have a 40 year amortization.  
The bond will cost the District approximately $70,000 per year.      
 
Resolutions 17-16 is the District formal approval of moving forward with the bond 
financing.  Resolution 17-17 allows the District to use bond proceeds to reimburse itself 
for expenses other than construction, such as the cost of the bond financing (bond 
counsel) and already spent and future engineering costs.   







 
 


RESOLUTION NO.17-16 
 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT AUTHORIZING AND PROVIDING FOR A FINANCING 
FOR THE PURPOSE OF PROVIDING A PORTION OF THE COST OF ACQUIRING, 
CONSTRUCTING, ENLARGING, IMPROVING, AND/OR EXTENDING ITS WATER 


FACILITY TO SERVE AN AREA LAWFULLY WITHIN  
ITS JURISDICTION TO SERVE 


 
 


WHEREAS, it is necessary for the Sweetwater Springs Water District (hereinafter 
called the “District”) to raise a portion of the cost of such undertaking by entering into an 
installment purchase agreement including the execution and delivery of certificates of 
participation in the District’s installment  purchase obligation, created thereunder, in the  
principal amount of $1,979,000, pursuant to the provisions of the California Water Code; 
and  


WHEREAS, the District intends to obtain assistance from the United States 
Department of Agriculture (herein called the “Government”), acting under the provisions 
of the Consolidated Farm and Rural Development Act (7 U.S.C. 1921 et seq.), in the 
planning, financing, and supervision of such undertaking and the purchasing of 
certificates of participation lawfully issued, in the event that no other acceptable 
purchaser for such certificates of participation is found by the District.  


NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, the Board of Directors of 
the Sweetwater Springs Water District hereby resolves: 


1. To have prepared, on its behalf, and to adopt a resolution for the 
execution and delivery of installment  purchase financing documents containing such 
items, and in such forms as are required by state statutes and as are agreeable and 
acceptable to the Government. 


2. To refinance the unpaid balance, in whole or in part, of the certificates of 
participation, upon the request of the Government, if at any time it shall appear to the 
Government that the District is able to refinance the certificates of participation by 
obtaining a loan for such purposes from responsible cooperative or private sources, at 
reasonable rates and terms for loans for similar purposes and periods of time as 
required by Section 333(c) of said Consolidated Farm and Rural Development Act (7 
U.S.C. 1983(c)). 


3. To provide for, execute, and comply with Form RD 400-4, “Assurance 
Agreement,” and Form RD 400-1, “Equal Opportunity Agreement,” including an “Equal 
Opportunity Clause,” which clause is to be incorporated in, or attached as a rider to, 
each construction contract and subcontract involving in excess of $10,000. 







Resolution 17-16  2 
October 5, 2017 


4. To indemnify the Government for any payments made or losses suffered 
by the Government on behalf of the District.  Such indemnification shall be payable from 
the same source of funds pledged to pay the District’s installment  purchase obligations 
or any other legal permissible source.  


5. That upon default in the payments of any principal and accrued interest 
with respect to the certificates of participation or in the performance of any covenant or 
agreement contained herein, or in the instruments incident to making or insuring the 
loan, the Government, at its option, may (a) declare the entire principal amount, then 
outstanding, and accrued interest immediately due and payable, (b) for the account of 
the District (payable from the source of funds pledged to pay the District’s installment  
purchase obligations or any other legally permissible source), incur and pay reasonable 
expenses for repair, maintenance, and operation of the facility and such other 
reasonable expenses as may be necessary to cure the cause of default, and/or (c) take 
possession of the facility, repair, maintain, and operate or rent it.  Default under the 
provisions of this resolution or any instrument incident to the making or insuring of the 
loan may be construed by the Government to constitute default under any other 
instrument held by the Government, and executed or assumed by the District, and 
default under any such instrument may be construed by the Government to constitute 
default hereunder. 


6. Not to sell, transfer, lease, or otherwise encumber the facility or any 
portion thereof, or interest therein, or permit others to do so without the prior written 
consent of the Government. 


7. Not to defease the certificates of participation, or to borrow money, enter 
into any contract or agreement, or otherwise incur any liabilities for any purpose in 
connection with the facility (exclusive of normal maintenance) without the prior written 
consent of the Government if such undertaking would involve the source of funds 
pledged to pay the District’s installment  purchase obligations. 


8. To place the proceeds of the certificates of participation on deposit in an 
account and in a manner approved by the Government.  Funds may be deposited in 
institutions insured by the state or federal government or invested in readily marketable 
securities backed by the full faith and credit of the United States. Any income from these 
accounts will be considered as revenues of the system. 


9. To comply with all applicable state and federal laws and regulations and to 
continually operate and maintain the facility in good condition. 


10.  To provide for the receipt of adequate revenues to meet the requirements 
debt service, operation and maintenance, and the establishment of adequate reserves. 
Revenue accumulated over and above that needed to pay operating and maintenance, 
debt service and reserves may only be retained or used to make prepayments on the 
loan. Revenue cannot be used to pay any expenses which are not directly incurred for 
the facility financed by the USDA. No free service or use of the facility will be permitted.  


1608150.1  14929-003  







Resolution 17-16  3 
October 5, 2017 


11. To acquire and maintain such insurance and fidelity bond coverage as 
may be required by the Government. 


12.  To establish and maintain such books and records relating to the 
operation of the facility and its financial affairs, and to provide for the required audit 
thereof, as required by the Government, to provide the Government a copy of each 
such audit without its request, and to forward to the Government such additional 
information and reports as it may from time-to-time require. 


13. To provide the Government at all reasonable times access to all books 
and records relating to the facility and access to the property of the system so that the 
Government may ascertain that the District is complying with the provisions hereof, and 
of the instruments incident to the making or insuring of the loan. 


14. That if the Government requires that a reserve account be established and 
maintained, disbursements from that account may be used when necessary for 
payments due on the certificates of participation if sufficient funds are not otherwise 
available.  With the prior written approval of the Government, funds may be withdrawn 
for: 


a. Paying the cost of repairing or replacing any damage to the facility 
caused by catastrophe. 


b. Repairing or replacing short-lived assets. 


c. Making extensions or improvements to the facility. 


Any time funds are disbursed from the reserve account, additional deposits will 
be required until the reserve account has reached the required funded level. 


15. To provide adequate service to all persons within the service area who 
can feasibly and legally be served and to obtain USDA's concurrence prior to refusing 
new or adequate services to such persons. Upon failure to provide services which are 
feasible and legal, such person shall have a direct right of action against the District or 
Board of Directors. 


16. To comply with the measures identified in the Government’s 
environmental impact analysis for this facility for the purpose of avoiding or reducing the 
adverse environmental impacts of the facility’s construction or operation. 


17. The provisions hereof and the provisions of all instruments incident to the 
making or the insuring of the loan, unless otherwise specifically provided by the terms of 
such instrument, shall be binding upon the District as long as the certificates of 
participation are held or insured by the Government or assignee.  The provisions of 
Sections 6 through 17 hereof may be provided for in more specific detail in the 
installment  purchase financing documents; to the extent that the provisions contained 
in such installment  purchase financing documents should be found to be inconsistent 
with the provisions hereof, these provisions shall be construed as controlling between 
the District and the Government or assignee. 


1608150.1  14929-003  







Resolution 17-16  4 
October 5, 2017 


I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly 
and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on 
October 5, 2017, by the following vote. 
 


 
 


 
 
 
 
 
  


       


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Richard Holmer       
Gaylord Schaap       
Pip Marquez de la Plata      


            
       


Sukey Robb-Wilder 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 


 


 


 


 


1608150.1  14929-003  







Resolution 17-16  5 
October 5, 2017 


1608150.1  14929-003  


CERTIFICATION TO BE EXECUTED AT LOAN CLOSING 


 


I, the undersigned, as ___General Manager____ of the ____Sweetwater Springs Water 
District__, hereby certify that the ____Board of Directors__ of such District is composed of 
__5__ members, of whom ______, constituting a quorum, were present at a meeting thereof 
duly called and held on the _5th_ day of _October, _2017; and that the foregoing resolution was 
adopted at such meeting by the vote shown above.  I further certify that as of 
__________________, the date of closing of the loan from the Government, said resolution 
remains in effect and has not been rescinded or amended in any way. 


Dated, this _______ day of ____________________, ____. 


 


     By: _______________ _________________ 


     Name: __Stephen Mack___ 


     Title: __General Manager____ 


 







 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 17-17 
 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 


DECLARING ITS OFFICIAL INTENT 
TO REIMBURSE CERTAIN EXPENDITURES 


FROM THE PROCEEDS OF DEBT 
 
 


WHEREAS, Sweetwater Springs Water District (the “District”) intends to provide 
for improvements, extensions, and additions to the municipal water system of the 
District, as further described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein (the 
“Project”); 


WHEREAS, the District anticipates that, for the purpose of financing the costs of 
the Project on a long-term basis, it will issue debt obligations; 


WHEREAS, the maximum principal amount of such debt expected to be issued 
to finance the Project is $1,979,000 ; 


WHEREAS, the District has, heretofore, and expects in the future to pay certain 
expenditures in connection with the Project prior to the issuance of the debt; and 


WHEREAS, in order to obtain favorable treatment of the expenditures of the 
proceeds of the debt used to reimburse the District’s prior expenditures, Treasury 
Regulations section 1.150-2 requires the District to declare its reasonable official intent 
to reimburse such prior Project expenditures with the proceeds of debt. 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the District 
as follows: 


1. Findings 


.  The Board of Directors hereby finds and determines that the foregoing recitals are 
true and correct. 


2. Official Intent 


.  The District hereby states that it reasonably expects to reimburse its expenditures on 
Project costs with proceeds of debt to be incurred by the District.  The foregoing 
statement is a declaration of official intent that is made under and only for the purpose 
of establishing compliance with the requirements of Treasury Regulations 
section 1.150-2.  This resolution does not bind the District to make any expenditure on 
the Project or to incur any debt for the Project. 







Resolution 17-17  2 
October 5, 2017 


1602811.1  14929-003  2 


3. Authority to Declare Official Intent 


.  The Board of Directors designates the District Manager as the officer of the District 
who is authorized, individually, to declare official intent, on behalf of the District, 
regarding reimbursement of prior expenditures with debt proceeds for purposes of 
compliance with Treasury Regulations section 1.150-2 and any successor thereto. 


4. Additional Acts 


.  The officers of the District are hereby authorized and directed, individually and 
collectively, to do any and all things and to execute, deliver and perform any and all 
agreements and documents that they deem necessary or advisable in order to 
effectuate the purposes of this resolution.  All actions, heretofore, taken by the officers 
of the District that are in conformity with the purposes and intent of this resolution are 
hereby ratified, confirmed and approved in all respects. 


5. Effective Date 


.  This resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption. 


I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly 
and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on 
October 5, 2017, by the following vote. 
 


 
 


 
 
 
 
 
  


     


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Richard Holmer       
Gaylord Schaap       
Pip Marquez de la Plata      


 
    
            
       


Sukey Robb-Wilder 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 


 


 
 







 


1602811.1  14929-003  A-3 


Exhibit A 


(Project List) 


 


Improvements to the Sweetwater Springs Water District water system.  
Improvements include replacement of approximately 3,500 ft of existing main and 70 
services on Old River Rd at Morningside east to the eastern section of Foothill Drive, 
Orchard Rd, Foothill Drive and River Rd on river side of the road, and the installation of 
fire hydrants. 


 





		Item V-B - Approval of Resos 17-16 and17-17

		Item V-B.1 - Resolutioin 17-16

		Item V-B.2 - Resolutioin 17-17






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: August 3, 2017 
  
SUBJECT: PARTICIPATION IN THE PUBLIC AGENCY RETIREMENT SERVICES 
(PARS) PENSION RATE STABILIZATION PROGRAM 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   Receive a presentation by General Manager Steve Mack on 
District investment of funds held in the PARS Public Agencies Post-Employment Benefits 
Trust (PARS Trust) and provide direction to staff.    
 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Varies, depending on the level of investment risk selected and the 
level of investment management selected. 
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
Over the last few months, the District has investigated and ultimately decided to 
participate in the PARS Trust as one method of addressing pension costs and to fund 
the Trust with a portion of District reserves currently held at the County  Following 
direction given at the last Board Meeting, staff has completed and sent in the PARS 
Trust enrollment paperwork, and earlier in this meeting a check in the sum of $200,000 
consisting of policy reserves housed in the District's Building Fund at the County was 
approved to fund our Trust.   
 
This month's discussion focuses on our investment choices. 
 
PARS offers five (5) diversified portfolio choices (managed by HighMark Capital 
Management) representing a range of risk as shown below: 
 


 % 5-year Annualized 
Return ** 


(County of Sonoma) (1% or less) 


Conservative (15% Equities) 3.51% 


Moderately Conservative (30% Equities) 5.09% 


Moderate (50% Equities) 7.12% 







PARS Presentation  2  
October 5, 2017 


Balanced (60% Equities) 8.13% 


Capital Appreciation (75% Equities) 9.67% 


**  Does NOT include fund fees. 


 
Attached to this staff report is more detailed information about each of these portfolios 
as of 2017, 2nd Quarter.   
 
All of the portfolios project a higher annualized rate of return than the District has been 
getting at the County for the last few years.  The County's investments are in bonds 
and fixed income.  The PARS Trust portfolios invest a portion of funds in equities.  
Generally speaking, higher investment in equities means higher annualized returns, but 
also a higher risk of losing money.  In addition, each portfolio offers the choice of 
actively managed investment choices or a passive approach using index funds.  The 
actively managed portfolios carries with it fund fees that are approximately 40 basis 
points (0.40%) higher than the passive approach.  One would think an actively 
managed fund should achieve higher returns than a passively managed one, but history 
does not definitively bear this theory out. 
 
Which portfolio should the District choose?  The question of how much risk to take 
was considered by the Board when the District began participation in the CERBT 
program, a Trust similar to the PARS Trust that the District joined to address retiree 
health costs.  For that program, the District picked a portfolio strategy that invests 65% 
in Equities/REITS with an expected average annual return of 7.28%.  The closest 
counterpart to this portfolio strategy with PARS is the Balanced Portfolio (60% equities).  
In a nod to the Board discussion when the District joined CERBT, and because the level 
of risk seems about right, staff is recommending investment in the Balanced Portfolio  
 
Staff also strongly recommends choosing the passive approach over an actively 
managed fund.  The possibility of slightly higher returns seems more than outweighed 
by the additional fees of an actively managed fund, fees which must be paid even in 
years in which the fund loses money. 
 
Staff has discussed investment strategies with Andrew Brown, a financial advisor with 
Highmark Capital who manages the PARS accounts, who pointed out that the fund 
choice should be considered in conjunction with projected withdrawals from the 
account.  Given our plan to leave the funds sit for the near future, either the Balanced 
fund or the Moderate portfolio would both be sensible choices.  He also noted that we 
can instruct PARS to have the funds invested over a 3-4 month period rather than all at 
one time to smooth any near term market volatility. 













































		Item V-C - PARS Trust investment choice

		Item V-C.1 - PARS Highmark portfolios performance 2Q 2017






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 


 
Meeting Date: October 5, 2017 
  
SUBJECT: GUERNEWOOD PARK RESORT WATER SERVICE REQUEST TO 
THE DISTRICT  
 


RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a presentation from General Manager Steve Mack 
regarding the Guernewood Park Resort request for water service from the District and 
provide direction to staff.    
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none at this time.  


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Guernewood Park Resort is a proposed hotel/motel with a reported 120 rooms and 
a restaurant which is located next to the Dubrava Condominiums and Hulburt Creek in 
Guernewood Park.  This project has been an on and off proposal for many years and it 
apparently is on again.  Staff has had one meeting with Jean Kapolchok, planning 
consultant for the project and some phone calls and email communications with the 
engineering consultants, BKF Engineers and a recent phone call from Ms. Kapolchok, 
who wanted more information about proceeding with the modeling.     
 
We have told the Project proponents that modeling of the District's Guerneville System 
is needed for us to adequately respond to their request for service.  Coastland 
Engineering has told us that the modeling work would cost approximately $41,000.  I 
have told the Project proponents that because we have no guarantee that this work 
would result in an actual project connecting with the District (we have heard this Project 
was ready to go before), that the Project would have to bear the cost of the modeling.  
I also stated that we understand the modeling may tell us we have to do system 
improvements - a new tank, perhaps larger distribution lines).   Ms Kapolchok asked 
about sharing the costs - my response was that I believed that if this project goes 
forward there will have to be system improvements required by the Project but 
benefitting the District in other ways.  These costs, including modeling costs, could be 
part of a negotiation of the Project buying into the District, if it gets that far.  Ms. 
Kapolchok told me they would proceed with getting the modeling done.   
 
She also wondered about a can and will serve letter from the District.  I told her we 
could consider a conditional letter when the modeling has given us a better picture of 
what needs to be done.  She also stated that she believed Project construction would 
start in the summer of 2018. 
  








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-E   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: October 5, 2017  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE 2016 - 2017 ANNUAL REVIEW 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a staff presentation regarding the 2016-2017 
Annual Review. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none   


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The District does an annual review each year at the July meeting.  Because of my 
injury, this has been put off until now.  One reflection on the past year is the impact of 
flooding on staff activities.  
 
This is the fifth year that we are using this format, and, as before, it is still a work in 
progress and comments and suggestions are welcome.  Periodic review of District 
activities is a good check on what we are doing and with Board concurrence, we will 
continue the practice.     
 







Exhibit A: Sweetwater Springs Water District Annual 
Review, Fiscal Year 2016-2017 


 
The annual review is a look back of the achievements of the 
past fiscal year and a look forward to what we are expecting 
for the coming fiscal year.   
 
The mission of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is to provide 
its customers with quality water and service in an open, accountable, and 
cost-effective manner and to manage District resources for the benefit of the 
community and environment.  The District provides water distribution and 
maintenance services to five townships adjacent to the Russian River:  


 Guerneville 
 Rio Nido 
 Guernewood Park 
 Villa Grande 
 Monte Rio 


GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO 
ENSURE EFFECTIVE UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES 
 
FY 2017 Achievements:   


 Seventh year that 3% increase to Base Rate and Water Usage Charges 
was approved; fifth Year of 3% increase to Capital Debt Reduction 
Charge.   


 Reserve Policy met by FY 2017 Budget. 
 Statewide drought publicity is still affecting water sales and revenues; 


water use is increasing.   
 Restarted USDA Bond process for Phases 2 and 3 of 2017 CIP.   


 
FY 2018 Projections: 


 Investigate/monitor need for rate increase in May 2018, effective July 
2018.  Longer term impact of reduced water sales unknown; we may 
have a new normal on water sales (lower) and may need to adjust to 
this, $500,000 target for CIP funding may need to wait until State 
Loans paid off.  


 Review financial planning model to ensure it is meeting current 
financial planning needs; revise where appropriate.   


 Meet Reserve Policy with FY 2017 Budget.   
 Close USDA Bond in March 2018 


 
GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE 
WATER WITH FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, 
MANAGED AND MAINTAINED TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY 
 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Annual Review  
Fiscal Year 2016-2017  2 
 
FY 2017 Achievements: 


 Compliance with California Division of Drinking Water (formerly 
Department of Public Health (DPH)) regulations achieved.  Annual 
report submitted according to schedule.   


 The Drought is over but monthly reporting continues.   
 2017 CIP Phase 1 (River Road from Foothill to Rio Nido) construction 


contract awarded in May 2017.   
 We changed direction twice on our capital projects this year - we 


decided to self fund our CIP and spread the projects out early in the 
fiscal year and then reversed course and reinstated the USDA funding 
for Phases 2 and 3 of the 2017 CIP.   


 Total Leaks for calendar year 2016 at 112 (target was 140). 
 System leakage at 26% (June 2017) (target was 20%). 
 Flood Inundation issues with El Bonita Well Field satisfactorily resolved 


with the State Division of Drinking Water.   
 Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP) completed in October 2016.  


 
FY 2018 Projections: 
 


 FY 2017 CIP Phase 1 (Old River Road) should be completed in October 
2017.  Phases 2 and 3 should have award of contract in April or May 
2018. 


 Total leaks for calendar year 2016 at 100.   
 System leakage at 20%.  Continue use correlation equipment on 


regular basis to identify and fix leaks.  Review use of State Water 
Audit methodology to improve reporting of system losses 


 Continue use of automated map.  Become better at it; start making 
needed revisions.   


   
 


GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS 
FOR ALL REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 
 
FY 2017 Achievements:   
 


 Emergency Action Plan was reviewed and updated in October 2016.     
 Attended 2015 Flood Preparation meeting in November 2016   
 During January and February flooding, staff followed Emergency Action 


Plan which worked out well.  
 


 
FY 2018 Projections: 
 


 Update of Emergency Action Plan in October 2017. 
 Participate in County Emergency Operations communications/meetings 


in 2017. 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Annual Review  
Fiscal Year 2016-2017  3 
 


 Continue efforts to communicate with local agencies re emergency 
preparedness.  


 Work with local efforts for specific plans (Wild Fire Preparation for 
Guernewood Park?)   


 
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 
 
FY 2017 Achievements: 


   
 Field staff oversight of 2017 CIP, Phase 1. 
 20 in-house projects totaling 851.5 man-hours (down from 43 projects 


and 1562.5 hours).  Flooding response a factor in reduction in in-
house projects.   


 Second year of implementation of new MOU; it went well. 
  
FY 2018 Projections: 
 


 Continue staff training efforts. 
 Oversee completion of 2017 CIP Phase 1 construction. 
 Oversee start of 2017 CIP Phase 1 and 2 startup. 
 Continue focus on in-house projects. 
 Participate in more webinars and workshops. 


 
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC AND GOVERNMENTAL 
OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND EDUCATION 
 
FY 2017 Achievements: 
 


 Meeting summary sent to local media on monthly basis.   
 Website updated on at least monthly basis. 
 Continued display in lobby that shows examples of pipes that are being 


replaced by capital projects – good public response to this.   
 Making effort to provide outreach with local Chambers regarding the 


drought response. 
 Making monthly reports to State on required drought response 


information.   
 2015 UWMP completed in October 2016.   


 
FY 2018 Projections: 
 


 Get healthy 
 Restart meeting summary.   
 Look for opportunities to provide community leadership/participation 


on water-related issues.   
 Continue to look for ways to make website more useful. 
   







Sweetwater Springs Water District Annual Review  
Fiscal Year 2016-2017  4 
 
 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND 
INFORMATION 
 
FY 2017 Achievements: 
 


 Communicated flooding response activities.  
 


 
FY 2018 Projections: 
 


 Review sections of Policies and Procedures for revision. 
 Evaluate facility tour opportunities. 
   


 





		Item V-E - 2017 Annual Review

		Meeting Date: October 5, 2017 



		Item V-E.1 - 2017 Annual Review Report






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-F   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: October 5, 2017  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE REVIEW OF DISTRICT POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a staff presentation regarding review of District 
Policies and Procedures. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none   


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
In the past the District has made revisions to its Policies and Procedures (P&P), mostly 
based on an as needed basis - a shortcoming, or change in State law, or other reason 
has appeared and a particular section of the P&P was revised.   Several years ago the 
District hired a law student to review the P&P and she came up with suggested changes 
that were mostly format related.  Staff review the P&P from time to time as they use 
the document and annotate places that they see could be changed.   
 
A previous P&P revision was helped by Board assistance.  We suggest appointing an ad 
hoc committee to work with staff in coming up with suggestions on P&P revisions, 
discussing those suggestions with the Board, and then making the changes.   
 





		Meeting Date: October 5, 2017 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: October 5, 2017  
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in August were 24,037 units (55.2 AF, (Monte 
Rio cycle) and production was 75.6 AF.  Compared to one year ago, production and sales 
this month were higher (71.3 AF and 52.6 AF, respectively).  The water lost percentage is 
still gong higher, particularly in Monte Rio.     Figure 1 shows sales, production and % 
difference since 2008.     


 
2. Leaks:  In August we had 7 total leaks and spent 24 man-hours on them.   Those are fewer 


leaks and man-hours compared to the prior month and to August one year ago (18 and 97).    
Figure 2 shows service and main leaks separately with a total leaks line as well.     


   
3. Russian River Flow: The robust rainy season continues to result in relatively high summer 


flows.  September flows are similar to flows last summer; both are substantially higher than 
in prior years.   Figure 3 shows daily average flow at the Hacienda Bridge compared to the 
recent average and prior years.          


 
4. River Lane Property Sale:  Still waiting on the appraisal. 
 
5. Monte Rio Trails Project:  No news on this. 
  
6. 2017 CIP: This project is mostly done - we expect completion (tie-ins, paving and final 


cleanup) in mid to late October. 
 
7. Toilet Rebate/Direct Install Program:  There were no toilet rebates reported for 


September. 
 
8. In-House Construction Projects: 4 in-house construction projects were reported for 


September: Completion of the Villa Grande Project, 833' of 2 " main, 7 services (453 man-
hours, abandoned a main on Front Street, Monte Rio and reconnected 5 services (155 Man-
hours), installed new sample site on Summit Ave, Guerneville (4 man-hours), installed 205 ' 
of 2" poly on Outlet Drive, Monte Rio (126.5 man-hours)  


 
9.  Gantt Chart:   The bond approval process has been added - resolution approval is on the  


October agenda.       
 
 







General Manager’s Report  Page 2 of 4 
October 5, 2017 
 


 


Figure 1.  Monte Rio and Guerneville Sales and Production 12 Month 
Moving Averages, SSWD Since March 2010 


0


100


200


300


400


500


600


700


Mar-
10


Sep-
10


Mar-
11


Sep-
11


Mar-
12


Sep-
12


Mar-
13


Sep-
13


Mar-
14


Sep-
14


Mar-
15


Sep-
15


Mar-
16


Sep-
16


Mar-
17


S
a


le
s


 a
n


d
 P


ro
d


u
c


ti
o


n
 (


A
F


)


0%


5%


10%


15%


20%


25%


30%


35%


P
er


ce
n


t 
L


o
st


Monte Rio Sales


Guerneville Sales


Gville Prdtn


MR Prdtn


GV % Lost


MR % Lost


`







General Manager’s Report  Page 3 of 4 
October 5, 2017 
 


 


Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Main and Service Pipeline 
Breaks 


Moving Annual Average Since September 2008


-


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


Sep-
08


Mar-
09


Sep-
09


Mar-
10


Sep-
10


Mar-
11


Sep-
11


Mar-
12


Sep-
12


Mar-
13


Sep-
13


Mar-
14


Sep-
14


Mar-
15


Sep-
15


Mar-
16


Sep-
16


Mar-
17


B
re


ak
s


Main Breaks


Service Breaks


Total Leaks


Figure 3.  Russian River Summer Flow at Hacienda Bridge, 2017 Compared to 
Earlier Years, and the 2009-15 Average, Updated September 25, 2017


0


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


450


500


1
-A


p
r


8
-A


p
r


15
-A


p
r


22
-A


p
r


29
-A


p
r


6
-M


ay


13
-M


ay


20
-M


ay


27
-M


ay


3
-J


u
n


1
0


-J
u


n


1
7


-J
u


n


2
4


-J
u


n


1
-J


ul


8
-J


ul


15
-J


ul


22
-J


ul


29
-J


ul


5
-A


u
g


1
2


-A
u


g


1
9


-A
u


g


2
6


-A
u


g


2
-S


e
p


9
-S


e
p


1
6


-S
e


p


2
3


-S
e


p


3
0


-S
e


p


F
lo


w
 (


cf
s


)


2013
2014
2015
2016
09-15 Avg
2017


Source: USGS 
http://waterdata.usgs.gov/nwis/uv?11467000


 
 
 







 
Jul-17 Aug-17 Sep-17 Oct-17 Nov-17 Dec-17 Jan-18 Feb-18 Mar-18 Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 FY18+


Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion
/
Milestone 
Date


Budget Preparation
        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
        Staff Budget Preparation Begins
        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
        Approve Budget


Capital Projects
        Update/Review District CIP


        2017 CIP Phase 2&3 Award of 
Contract


        2017 CIP Construction Starts


·        USDA Bond


Urban Water Management Plan Oct-16


Water Rights SCWA Protest
Emergency Response Plan Review
Building Lease


        Lease Renewal August-17
Policies and Procedures


        Other Policy
        Overall Review


Board and General Manager Annual Review


Figure 4.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 
 





		Meeting Date: October 5, 2017 



